
AGENDA 
COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 
 

 
1. Call to Order  

 
2. Roll Call  
 
3. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance  
 
4. Approval of Minutes 

a) Regular Meeting January 4, 2022 
 

5. Awards and Recognitions 
 

6. Appearances & Public Presentations 
a) 2021 Audit Report – David Irwin, CPA - Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC 
b) South Carolina Artisans Center - David Smalls 
 

7. Administrator’s Briefing  
 

8. Public Hearing 
a) Ordinance 21-O-16, To Reapportion Colleton County Council East and West 

Districts to Meet Federal and State Requirements Based on United States Census 
2020 Population Data 

 
9. Old Business 

 
a) 3rd Reading Ordinance 21-O-16, To Reapportion Colleton County Council East and 

West Districts to Meet Federal and State Requirements Based on United States 
Census 2020 Population Data 

 
10. New Business  

 
a) 1st Reading Ordinance 22-O-01, By Title Only, An Ordinance Authorizing The 

Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Tax Agreement By And Between 
Colleton County And An Industry Currently Known To The County As “Project 
Ruby”, Whereby Colleton County Will Enter Into A Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes 
Arrangement With Project Ruby; Providing For Payment By Project Ruby Of Certain 
Fees In Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes; Providing For Assignment Of Certain Existing 
Economic Development Incentives To Project Ruby; Providing For Certain Special 
Source Revenue Or Infrastructure Credits; To Further Amend The Multi-County 
Industrial/Business Park Agreement Between Colleton County, South Carolina And 
Hampton County, South Carolina, Providing For The Development Of A Jointly 
Owned And Operated Industrial/Business Park, So As To Include Additional 



Property In Colleton County As Part Of The Park; Providing For The Allocation Of 
Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes Paid By Project Ruby Under The Agreement For Establishment 
Of Multi-County Industrial/Business Park; And Other Matters Relating Thereto.  
 

b) 1st Reading Ordinance 22-O-02, By Title Only, Authorizing the Execution of a 
Temporary Lease Agreement Between Colleton County and Causie Contracting, Inc. 
for the Staging of Personnel and Equipment related to the I-95 Construction and 
Repaving from St. George to Point South 

 
c) Resolution 22-R-07 To Officially Name the Cottageville Park and Playground 

 
d) Resolution 22-R-08  To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies  

 
11. Items for Information and Public Record  

 
12. Public Comments (3 minutes per person/max time 20 min.) 

 
13. Council Time 

 
14. Executive Session 

a) Contractual – Magistrate Court 
b) Real Estate – Easement Green Pond Railway 
c) Personnel 

1. Assessor 
2. Clerk of Court 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
16. Informal Meeting of the Whole  
 

 
COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING ON FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

 
Colleton County Council will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, February 1, 2022, at 6:00 pm. 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, County Council will be holding the meeting virtually and the 
public will be able to stream the meeting from a link on the County’s home page or by going to 
www.colletoncounty.org/live. Individuals who would like to participate in public comment can 
do so at www.colletoncounty.org/comment. 

 
 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2022 

VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING  
6:00 P.M. 

 
Colleton County Council  
Council Chambers, Old Jail Building 
109 Benson Street 
Walterboro, SC 29488 
 
Present: Chairman Steven Murdaugh called the meeting to order with Council Members Dr. Joseph 
Flowers, Art Williams, Gene Whetsell and Phillip Taylor in attendance.  
 
Others Included: Kevin Griffin, Sean Thornton, Meagan Utsey, Jon Carpenter, Kaela Brinson, and 
Barry McRoy. 
 
Phillip Taylor gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
A. Regular Meeting Minutes, December 7, 2021 — Dr. Joseph Flowers moved to approve 

the minutes of the Regular Meeting held on December 7, 2021. The motion was seconded 
by Councilman Phillip Taylor and the motion carried unanimously.  

 
Administrator’s Briefing  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated that January 12th will be our formation meeting for the Accommodations Tax 
Advisory Board. I appreciate all of you getting nominees; we now have a quorum and can get them 
moving forward to spend the initial Accommodations Tax. I believe we are at about $75,000 that 
can be used towards increasing tourism in the community. On Wednesday, January 19th at 5:30 
p.m. we will have the Capital Sales Tax Program ranking meeting for the new sales tax ballot that 
will come up November of this year. I had hoped to have the information out by now, but our 
contractors have been a little behind. There has been some additional things added at the end, as 
well as, we are just getting some jail numbers this week. The information will be out no later than 
the close of business on Friday. This will give you two good weekends and a week to review. If 
you have any questions at all please give me a call as I know this will generate a lot of conversation. 
We can get together one on one and try to hammer out any details that we need to before we get 
into the meeting, so that everyone understands what is in these proposals. 
The only other item I want to discuss with you is we were really busy here in December, especially 
in the finance department, finishing our year-end audit. The audit wrapped up the fiscal year 2021 
with a much improved fiscal year as 2020. The total revenues were up about 4.1 million, with a 
total of 57.4 million overall. This lead to a total increase in fund balance across all funds, not just 
the general funds, to include: Fire-Rescue, Solid Waste, and Roads and Bridges of about 3 million 
dollars. The general fund accounted for about 33.5 million of total revenue and had 32.1 million 
in expenditures with about $967,000 increase in fund balance there. The increase offsets $538,000 
used in fund balance reporting in fiscal year 2020. Which brought us under the 9 million that we 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

2 
 

have been accustom to, but we are now back over that to a 9.1 million dollar fund balance, which 
represents 29% of annual expenditures. As you know by our Budget Ordinance and Gatsby 
requirements, we are required to be within at least 20% of annual expenditures to stay in good 
standing with our bond readings and such. Also, any county that receives over $750,000 in federal 
grant awards must undergo a single audit, which reviews our internal controls and compliance with 
the various federal regulations. For fiscal year 2021, we received 7.6 million in federal funds either 
directly or that passed through from various state agencies. That single audit was also completed, 
the county did not have any findings which will allow us to be a low risk auditee. The audit report 
in full will be presented to council in February. If anyone would like details on any of this 
information, let me know.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: This is for fiscal year 2021, do you know if that includes the first six months 
of 2022? 
 
Mr. Griffin: It does include the first six months of 2022, and that will be in your council report that 
we get out later in the week. We will have some good information on that, we are just getting 
December numbers in and we have that included in the council report that is coming out later in 
the week.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: The meeting on January 19th, is that a virtual meeting? 
 
Mr. Griffin: We were going to discuss that, but I know we have had a pretty strong uptick in the 
county and within the local government of Covid cases. That meeting may end up virtual as well, 
but we will discuss that in the next few weeks.  
 
No further discussion. 
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Before we move on we have an Emergency Resolution, 22-R-06. I move 
that we amend the agenda to add the emergency Resolution No. 22-R-06, to Authorize the Waiver 
of Solid Waste Residential Debris Disposal Fees. This motion was seconded by Councilman 
Taylor. The motion carried unanimously. This item will be added as line item F under New 
Business.   
 
Old Business 
 
A. 3rd Reading Ordinance 21-O-16, To Reapportion Colleton County Council East and 

West Districts to Meet Federal and State Requirements Based on United States 
Census 2020 Population Data 

 
 Councilman Taylor moved to approve the 3rd reading of Ordinance 21-O-16, To 

Reapportion Colleton County Council East and West Districts to Meet Federal and State 
Requirements Based on United States Census 2020 Population Data. The motion was 
seconded by Dr. Flowers. The motion was carried unanimously.  

 
 Chairman Murdaugh: Do we have any dates and locations for public hearing? 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

3 
 

Councilman Williams: I thought we advised the County Administrator to contact Colleton 
County School District. I am aware they have been out of school for a while, so I don’t 
know if he had the opportunity.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: They do not have any interest to participate with us, so we will be 
doing this on our own.  
 
Mr. Griffin: I have reached out to the school district and provided them with the 
information from the SC Revenue and Fiscal Affairs office. I have been waiting to hear 
back. We can certainly move forward on our own if council would like to do that.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I received an email from the chairman of the school board basically 
stating that they were going to have to do their own meeting. I will verify with the chairman 
again, but we need to go ahead and try to set some dates and move forward.  
 
Mr. Griffin: There again, we will have to have some conversation related to Covid rules on 
this as well since we stated we wanted to do this out in the community. We probably need 
to discuss how we want to handle this.  
 
No further discussion.  

 
B. 3rd Reading Ordinance 21-O-17, to Amend Title 6 – Animals, Section 6.04.10 - 

Definitions and Section 6.04.40 – Restraint, of the Colleton County Code of 
Ordinances 
 
Councilman Whetsell: I would like to make a motion that we table this particular ordinance, 
21-O-17, and try to have some public hearings on this. I am not exaggerating I have had 
probably 20 calls from dog hunters on this. I think they need some time to be heard, as well 
as, county council and DNR.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I will certainly agree with you that I have had numerous calls and 
there are some public comments tonight. I have no opposition to tabling it. I do think we 
need to have some public forum that we can present information to them. I believe there is 
a lot of misinformation out there. I guess the issue is Covid and where and how we are 
going to do it.  
 
Dr. Flowers: I will second the motion to table this and I agree to getting everyone 
information rather than disinformation.  
 
Councilman Whetsell moved to table Ordinance 21-O-17, to Amend Title 6 – Animals, 
Section 6.04.10 - Definitions and Section 6.04.40 – Restraint, of the Colleton County Code 
of Ordinances. The motion was seconded by Dr. Flowers. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: We will try to come up with a location, but we are kind of at the 
mercy of Covid.  



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

4 
 

No further discussion. 

New Business 
 
A. Resolution 22-R-01, To Declare February as Black History Month in Colleton 

County 

 Councilman Taylor moved to approve Resolution 22-R-01, To Declare February as Black 
History Month in Colleton County. This motion was seconded by Councilman Williams. 
The motion carried unanimously.  

B. Resolution 22-R-02, To Authorize Acceptance and Budgeting of Various Grants for 
FY 2021-2022 

 Councilman Taylor moved to approve Resolution 22-R-02, To Authorize Acceptance and 
Budgeting of Various Grants for FY 2021-2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Williams. The motion carried unanimously.  

C. Resolution 22-R-03, To Approve Acceptance of a Grant from Coastal Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. in the amount of $144,125 for Industrial Infrastructure 
Development 

Councilman Taylor moved to approve Resolution 22-R-03, To Approve Acceptance of a 
Grant from Coastal Electric Cooperative, Inc. in the amount of $144,125 for Industrial 
Infrastructure Development. The motion was seconded by Councilman Williams. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Murdaugh: I just want to say we are fortunate to have good cooperatives in the 
county and thank you.  

Councilman Whetsell: Yes, thank you. 

No further discussion.  

D. Resolution 22-R-04, To Authorize the Council Clerk to Advertise for Board Vacancies 
 

Dr. Flowers moved to approve Resolution 22-R-03, To Authorize the Council Clerk to 
Advertise for Board Vacancies. The motion was seconded by Councilman Whetsell. The 
motion carried unanimously.  

 
E. Resolution 22-R-05, To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies 

 
Councilman Williams moved to approve Resolution 22-R-05,  to Appoint Members to 
Board Vacancies.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Whetsell. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
The following appointments were made by acclimation: Gerald Breland, LaVern Polk, and 
Mark Farish–Colleton County Fire and Rescue Commission; Samuel Bethay–Colleton 
County Land Use Zoning Board of Appeals.  



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

5 
 

 
F. Resolution No. 22-R-06, to Authorize the Waiver of Solid Waste Residential Debris 

Disposal Fees. 
 
Councilman Taylor moved to approve Resolution 22-R-06, to Authorize the Waiver of 
Solid Waste Residential Debris Disposal Fees. This motion was seconded by Councilman 
Williams. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Public Comments  
 
The following public comments were submitted prior to the meeting via 
www.colletoncounty.org/comment.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh read the following aloud: 
 
Jody Carter:  Gentlemen, I am asking you as a US Military Veteran, Farmer and a proud Native 
of Colleton County to not remove any of the language in the below ordinance: 
 
6.04.010. - Definitions. 
Running at large. Any animal shall be deemed to be "running at large" when the animal is off the 
property of the owner and not under the immediate and direct supervision of the owner or under 
the physical control of the owner or keeper by means of a leash or similar restraining device. In 
the case of hunting dogs actively involved in an ongoing hunt, the dogs shall not be deemed to be 
running at large so long as they are on the property legally and/or the owner or keeper is actively 
seeking to retrieve the dog. 
 
If the wording was removed as requested, it would be an end to all dog hunting in our county, no 
questions asked.  It would open the door to allow SCDNR the rights to charge anyone whose dog 
crosses a property line onto lands the animal is not welcome.  This could be a bird dog retrieving 
across a hedgerow, a rabbit dog making his circle, a deer dog/coon dog/hog dog preforming an act 
that he was bred and created to do, or just simply your household pet.  I understand we have bad 
apples in every group but 99% of dog hunters are not hunting with the purpose of harassing or 
aggravating another hunter.  They are simply in love with the sport and the dog.  I ask you to keep 
our Houndsmen and Birddog Handlers protected and to not let the outside influence of seasonal 
hunting transplants and neighboring counties impact Colleton traditions. 
 
Coming from an agricultural background, I have seen that allowing hunters to pursue deer and 
hogs with dogs is a major help in controlling our overpopulated deer/hog herd.  I invite anyone 
that thinks we have a decreasing deer population, to look at federal crop insurance data and add up 
the millions of crop dollars lost annually in our state to deer and hog damage. Nor are we lacking 
in automobile collisions with deer in our county based on a simple drive down our highways each 
morning. 
 
Obviously, if any dog that is on land which he is not welcome AND it is harassing livestock, 
personal property, or endangering safety, then we have a problem that needs to be resolved. 
 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

6 
 

Lastly, I thank each of you for your service to our county and I hope each of you give this much 
thought and consideration. 
 
God Bless. 
 
Kevin Brady: I’m against this running at large amendment. This is nothing but a money making 
scheme for the county!! We elected y’all to have a voice for us!! We will not tolerate y’all not 
working for us and will get voted out if this passes!! 
 
Mickey Joe Pye: I am concerned about the dog at large law that is being pushed thru by our county 
council. I am an avid hunter in Colleton County with hounds for deer and hogs. This law is will 
effect a lot of people in the county that pays a lot of lease payments on properties that they have 
to hunt. I am asking all council members to rethink this law this is our heritage and right to hunt 
with hounds. Trust me I know someone is probably having a problem with one or two individuals 
that are probably breaking the law and giving dog hunters a bad name but please don't take it out 
on the rest of us law abiding citizens. We as dog men spend a lot of money in tracking equipment 
but it's not all 100 percent perfect and dogs do get on places that we as hunters don't want them 
there. You have some people that don't even have enough land to be turning dogs loose on to begin 
with that's the ones who need to be punished. If you have one bad apple in the bunch throw that 
apple away not the whole basket. If this law needs to be put in effect let the voters VOTE on this 
issue. That is our right! Thank you and I would like to hear from my councilman on this issue.843-
908-3393 cell or email mickeyjoe.pye@prtc.us 
 
Halasa Glover: Concern about this new law because I'm a dog hunter  
 
Justin Miller: We are sitting in front of the old jail building. We would like to have this dog 
ordinance knocked off the table immediately!!! We are here to vote this down today. 
 
Colleton County Coalition of Rural Neighbors: What is the process that should be taken in order 
to invite our Councilmen to a virtual town hall? Our organization advocates for the "rural" areas 
of Colleton County. 
 
Councilman Williams: I have received numerous calls from different hunters in support of leaving 
the ordinance as is rather than striking the last part. 
 
Councilman Taylor: I to have received numerous calls and have been approached in a number of 
places in town as well as receiving emails from concerned hunters.  
 
Dr. Flowers: I think we need to look at this thing and table it like you said. We need to look at it 
and see what the problem really is and how we can work this for the County as well as being 
compliant with the state law too. I think that is one of the issues brought up by DNR. I think we 
need to get everyone together and get some factual information out there and why this was actually 
brought to us. I think that would clarify a lot of things that people are clouded about right now.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: We have tabled it for tonight and have decided to have public forum. I will 
put together some sort of presentation that shows the state statue and the county ordinance. I think 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

7 
 

it is important to not only look at those but also the proposed bill that came from the legislature in 
2018 that never got out of committee. We need to look at what potentially could happen. I have 
also received numerous comments and met with people here at my office. There is a lot of 
misinformation out there as well. This is certainly not intended to be a money making…the county 
is probably not getting as it pertains to hunting dogs. Let’s be clear this Ordinance is already in 
place as far as relating to pets and other animals, this doesn’t change any of that. The issue is the 
wording as it relates to hunting dogs. I think that is what we need to put out there; the issue with 
state law and county ordinance. Hopefully if we do that we can come up with a resolution that will 
be fair to everybody.  
 
Councilman Taylor: I wanted to wish everyone in the county a Happy New Year. Also, I just found 
out today that Mr. Paden McLeod passed away and his funeral is today. I wasn’t sure if the rest of 
council was aware of that, certainly we send our thoughts to his family and business.  
 
Dr. Flowers: I have known him for a long time, we send condolences to his friends and family.  
 
Councilman Williams: My condolences to the family as I did not know of his passing.  
 
Councilman Whetsell: Expresses his condolences as well.  
 
Councilman Williams: What can be done about the sale of ammunition via road side in the 
unincorporated areas of Colleton County? We have people that set up in a truck, pull on the side 
of the road and start selling ammunition.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Is this in the city or rural area? 
 
Councilman Williams: This is out in the rural areas. 
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I am not sure that there is anything…it would seem there would be some 
regulation on sale of ammunition, but I don’t know without researching that. This is something we 
can certainly check on. Is this a situation where there is price gouging?   
 
Councilman Williams: No, I just think that ammunition in times like this when you can’t get it out 
of gun shops but you can buy it black market off of the streets with the crimes we have in Colleton 
County I don’t think we are doing ourselves any favors by allowing black market trucks to set up 
in our community.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I will get with the administrator and county attorney and see what, if any, 
violation…are they selling any other items? 
 
Councilman Williams: No, all I see is signs leading up to the trucks that say ammunition for sale.  
 
Councilman Whetsell: *Comments on the price of the ammunition for sale on the side of the roads.  
 
Councilman Williams: But you can’t get it in the store and you have one individual with that much 
ammunition is an incident waiting to happen.  



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

8 
 

Chairman Murdaugh: Council, are there any other comments. 
 
Councilman Williams: Mr. Chairman, I have an email that I received addressed to the council from 
Ms. Gail Kidd. Did anyone else receive this email? 
 
All present did not receive the email. 
 
Councilman Williams: ***Reads the email aloud for all of council. The email requests that the 
Cottageville Park on Pierce Road be named after Mr. Womble.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Clarifies the location of the park. 
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated that it is the park in Cottageville off of Pierce Road. 
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Are we currently working out there? 
 
Councilman Taylor: Yes, we have started some of the work on the property.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I certainly think we can put it on the Agenda for next month if everyone is 
in agreeance.  
 
Councilman Taylor: I agree as long as we are not overstepping the recreation center, because they 
normally do those things. We just need to include them. 
 
Chairman Murdaugh: We can coordinate that with the director of the recreation park and see if 
they have a recommendation.  
 
Councilman Williams: I appreciate you considering putting it on the agenda.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: I have been notified by Meagan that we have more public comments.  
 
Meagan Utsey read the following aloud:  
 
Sherri Cassidy: There are a lot of people at the old jail building to vote against this ordinance 
with roaming at large.  It should be left as is!! 
 
Halasa Glover: Concerned about dog hunting law. 
 
Rural Coalition Of Colleton County: Our concerns are not the clubs (though they appear to be 
problematic) we want to talk about A Farmers Market in the Green Pond Area/Hwy 17. The people 
need access to fresh fruits and vegetables. The people should not have to drive 8 miles to have 
access to fresh food. Also, noone answered my question as to how the Rural areas can no longer 
be the "forgotten". We are the back bone of this County. We want to work with you not against 
you. Thank you ALL. 
 



County Council Meeting 
January 4, 2022 
 

9 
 

Chairman Murdaugh: Let’s see if we can get some contact information on the individual who heads 
up the Coalition. Are there any more public comments? 
 
Meagan Utsey: No, that is all.  
 
Adjournment 
Councilman Williams moved to adjourn the meeting, Councilman Whetsell seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously.  
 
The public/media was informed of the location, date, and time of the meeting on Friday, December 
31st, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act.  
 
 
 
This ___ day of February, 2022.      ______________________________ 
        Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  
 
______________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Clerk to Council 
 
 
**The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.  



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
First Reading : December 7, 2021   I, ______________________,  
Committee Referral : N/A   Council Clerk, certify that this 
Committee Consideration Date : N/A   Ordinance was advertised 
Committee Recommendation : N/A   for Public Hearing _______. 
Second Reading :  January 4, 2022    
Public Hearing :  February 1, 2022 
Third Reading :  February 1, 2022 
Effective Date : Immediately 
  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 21-O-16  

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[To Reapportion Colleton County Council East and West Districts to Meet Federal and 
State Requirements Based on United States Census 2020 Population Data.] 

 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. Colleton County Council, pursuant to the requirements of the laws of the State of South 

Carolina, Section 4-9-90 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, and the 
United States Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, is required to enact and adopt 
proportioned electoral districts within Colleton County; and 

 
2. Colleton County Council now has available the census data from the 2020 Census, which 

indicates that necessary changes must occur in the boundaries of the East and West 
District lines due to shifts in distribution of population; and 

 
3. The Council has endeavored to adopt the redistricting/reapportionment plan that best 

represents all citizens of Colleton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL, DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. Colleton County Council is the governing body of Colleton County, South Carolina and has 

employed the following criteria in the development of a reapportionment plan: 
 

a. The federal census results of 2020; 
b. Compliance with the United State Constitution; the Constitution of the State of South 

Carolina; the United States Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended; and Section 4-9-90 
of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended; 

c. Adherence to the Court ordered constitutional requirement of one person, one vote and 
the State law requiring population variance under 10%; 

d. Ensuring that parts of the districts are contiguous; 
e. Respecting communities of interest; 
f. Attempting to maintain constituent consistency: 
g. Avoiding the splitting of precincts where possible; 
h. Soliciting Public input. 



 

 
 
 2 

 
2. Colleton County Council, from and after the effective date of this Ordinance, shall reapportion 

the County’s two (2) districts for the purpose of electing members of Council.  Each district is set 
forth and depicted on the map (designated as Plan 1) as shown in Exhibit A, attached and 
included herein by reference.  The districts are as defined and delineated on the attached map and 
are based upon statistical data contained in Exhibit B, attached hereto. 

 
 
3. Severability:  

 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held to be invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. 
 

4. Conflict:  
 
Provisions in other County Ordinances, Resolutions, policies, or by-laws in conflict with 
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
 
 
ATTEST:      SIGNED: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _____________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman                      
                                                                                                                                                         
                           
 
____________________________   COUNCIL VOTE:   
Approved as to Form     OPPOSED: 
Sean Thornton, County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
First Reading : February 1, 2022   I, ______________________,  
Committee Referral : N/A   Council Clerk, certify that this 
Committee Consideration Date : N/A   Ordinance was advertised 
Committee Recommendation : N/A   for Public Hearing _______. 
Second Reading :  March 1, 2022    
Public Hearing :  April 5, 2022 
Third Reading :  April 5, 2022 
Effective Date : Immediately 
  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-O-01  

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-
LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN COLLETON COUNTY AND AN 
INDUSTRY CURRENTLY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY AS “PROJECT RUBY”, 
WHEREBY COLLETON COUNTY WILL ENTER INTO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAXES 
ARRANGEMENT WITH PROJECT RUBY; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT BY 
PROJECT RUBY OF CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES; 
PROVIDING FOR ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN EXISTING ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES TO PROJECT RUBY; PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE OR INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS; TO FURTHER 
AMEND THE MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN COLLETON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND HAMPTON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, PROVIDING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINTLY 
OWNED AND OPERATED INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK, SO AS TO INCLUDE 
ADDITIONAL PROPERTY IN COLLETON COUNTY AS PART OF THE PARK; 
PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAXES PAID BY 
PROJECT RUBY UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF MULTI-
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
THERETO.]  
 

 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
First Reading : February 1, 2022   I, ______________________,  
Committee Referral : N/A   Council Clerk, certify that this 
Committee Consideration Date : N/A   Ordinance was advertised 
Committee Recommendation : N/A   for Public Hearing _______. 
Second Reading :  March 1, 2022    
Public Hearing :  April 5, 2022 
Third Reading :  April 5, 2022 
Effective Date : Immediately 
  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-O-02  

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[An Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of a Temporary Lease Agreement Between 
Colleton County and Causie Contracting, Inc. for the Staging of Personnel and Equipment 
related to the I-95 Construction and Repaving from St. George to Point South.]  
 

 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 1, 2022    
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-07 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[To Officially Name the Cottageville Park and Playground, Located at 72 Salley Ackerman Drive 
in Cottageville, “Leroy Womble, Jr. Park”] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Cottageville Park and Playground serves the community of Colleton County, located at 72 Salley 

Ackerman Drive in Cottageville; and 
 

2. The facility has not officially been named nor dedicated in the honor of any individual; and 
 

3. Leroy Womble was a lifelong member of St. John AME Church in Cottageville, where he worked with 
the Male Chorus, the Media Ministry, and the Golden Group for several years, providing breakfast and 
served as the past President of Sons of Allen (SOA). Mr. Womble was an incredible vocalist that 
displayed a great passion for music, traveling city to city, displaying his love and admiration for God 
through music; and 

 
4. Leroy Womble’s ministry extended beyond the walls of the church. Most people knew him from his work 

in the community, for he was an exemplary example to others in his community. He mentored and 
coached young men through baseball, where he won several championships. Throughout his life, he 
advocated on behalf of his community through the political process by building strong and lasting 
relationships in the South Carolina House of Representatives, and he worked tirelessly as an advocate for 
voting rights; and 

 
5. Mr. Womble served in the United States Army for three years, and upon returning from the military, he 

attended Trident Technical College, where he studied Business Administration and was a member of the 
Black Caucus. He served as an In-Flight Master Chef at the Charleston Air Force Base, where he retired 
after thirty faithful years of service.  Mr. Womble then served as the Director of the Lowcountry 
Community Action Agency (CAA) for several years and retired a second time. Known for his 
commitment to providing community service, he received many awards, recognitions, and accolades. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
  
1. The Colleton County Council hereby endorses the recommendation that the Cottageville Park and 

Playground, located at 72 Salley Ackerman Dr. in Cottageville, be named to honor Leroy Womble, 
Jr.  
 

2. The Cottageville Park and Playground, located at 72 Salley Ackerman Dr. in Cottageville, is hereby 
named “Leroy Womble, Jr. Park”. 

 
ATTEST:    SIGNED: 
 
________________________    ___________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 



     COUNCIL VOTE: 
     OPPOSED:  



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 1, 2022 
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    

 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-08 

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies.] 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. Colleton County Accommodations Tax Advisory Board has three vacancies; and 

Applicant: Darryl Badley, Jr.  
 
2. The County Council is the appointing authority for Boards. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
 
The Council Hereby appoints the following: 
 
 
Colleton County Accommodations Tax Advisory Board: Darryl Badley, Jr.  
 
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
________________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairmen 
 
     COUNCIL VOTE:    
     OPPOSED:    
                


	2-1-22 RM Virtual
	AGENDA
	6:00 P.M.
	COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING ON FEBRUARY 1, 2022

	January 4, 2022 Virtual
	21-O-16 redistricting ordinance
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	22-O-01 Project Ruby
	22-O-02 Temporary Lease Causie Contracting Inc 18 months
	22-R-07 Naming Park on Pierce Road
	22-R-08 Appoint Members to  Board Vacancies

